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Strategic Report of the Corporation
OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGY

The Corporation members present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's
report for the year ended 31 July 2022,

Legal status

Salford City College was formed on 2 January 2009 from the three existing colleges in Salford. On 1 January 2009
Pendleton College acquired the assets and liahilities of Eccles College and Salford College. This was achieved by
the dissolution of the corporations of Eccles College and Salford College and a transfer of their employees, assets
and liabilities into Pendleton College under section 27 of the Further and Higher Education Act 19592,

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the purpose of conducting
Pendleton College but it changed its name to Salford City College on 2 January 2009, The College is an exempt
charity for the purposes of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011,

Mission, Vision, Strategy and Objectives
Our Strategic Plan

Following the College's adoption in August 2021 of a 2-year post-pandemic strategy for 2021 to 2023, the
Corporation further reviewed the College’s mission during the year, and in July 2022 launched its Strategy 2022
to 2025, with a refreshed vision, objections and values. The full strategic plan and corresponding strategy video
can be found on the College’s website.

The theory underpinning our strategic plan focuses on quality. Quality is central to everything the College strives
to do, whether that is in our academic provision or our professional services. This focus leads to increased
growth, greater efficiency and sustainability within a continuing cycle.

Our Vision
To be a beacon of educational excellence, transforming the lives of the individuals and communities we serve.
Our Objectives

* Teaching and Learning - To inspire people in our city and region through the provision of on outstanding,
inclusive, and ambitious curricufum which is an engine for social mobility.

s Welfare - To safequard and promate the health, safety, and positive well-being of all who study and
work at the College.

* Resource and Business Operations - To manage the College’s finances, estates, and resources
effectively to provide on exceptional and sustainable learning enviranment,

» External Presence - To develop a clear eco system with productive links to schools, wniversities,
employers, and other key partners, whilst raising the external profile of the College.

+«  People - To be an exceptional emplayer where staff are developed and thrive becouse they feel valued,
engoged, and challenged,

+  Sustainability - To lead by exomple on environmentaol sustaoinability, providing solutions through
collmboration and engagement, underpinned by our commitment to the Green agenda.

Our Values

Our core values are at the heart of everything that we do, and we behave with:

+«  Integrity
* Respect
+  Kindness



QOur Financial objectives

The key ongoing financial objectives are:
= Generation of a surplus excluding pension adjustment (2021-22; £463k surplus).
*  Achievemnent of at least a '‘Good’ financial health rating from the Education Skills Funding Agency (2021-
22: ‘Outstanding’).
Achievement of an adjusted current ratio of 1.1 (2021-2221:; 2.14).
Maintenance of cash days of 50 (2021-22: 100).

Az with the whole of the sector, the College has had a challenging year in relation to the impact of the increasing
cost of living, following the Covid-19 pandemic. However, the guality, growth and efficiency objectives have
been met, and the College has achieved a strong financial position and cash balance in excess of its plan.

Resources
Salford City College has a wide range of resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic priorities.

The College employed an average of 751 people (563 when expressed as full-time equivalents), of whom 355
were teaching staff (301 when expressed as full-time equivalents).

The College enrolled approximately 9,965 students. The College's student population includes 4,622 16 to 18
year old students, 1,574 apprentices, 244 higher education students, and 2,378 adult learners. There were no
international students,

The College has £26,824k of net assets (2020-21: £180k of net assets), including a Enil pension liability (2020-21:
£26,181k liability), and total debt of £5,784k (2020-21: £6,212k), £418k of which is deemed to be due within one
year (2020-21: £434k). The College’s cash balance at 31* July 2022 was £10,223k (2020-21: £9,065k).

Tangible resources include the main college sites at Dronfield Road, Lissadel Street, Merchant’s Quay in Salford,
FutureSkills at MediaCity, Chatsworth Road in Eccles and Walkden Road in Waorsley. In addition to these main
sites, the needs of learners are met in a number of community based venues across the City of Salford.

Maintaining brands is essential for the College’s success at attracting students and developing external
relationships. Trading as SCC Group, the College markets its provision under the banners of five colleges and two
hrands. The five colleges are Eccles Sixth Form College, Pendleton Sixth Form College, City Skills, Worsley College,
and Future Skills at MediaCityUk, whilst the two brands are University Centre at 5alford City College and
Apprenticeships at 5alford City College.

The College has an outstanding reputation locally and nationally. Inthe last Ofsted inspection in December 2019,
the outcome remained a grade 2 meaning the College continues to be a Good provider.

The College is registered with the Office of Students, to deliver its higher education provisian,

Maintaining a quality brand is essential for the College’s success at attracting students and external relationships
for the furtherment of its mission. In year, the College was successful in a number of external awards:
«  Winner of Educate North’s Student Experience Award 2022
*  ‘Winner of The Sixth Form College Association’s Sociol Mobility Award 2022
*  Winner of Pearson Teaching Awards’ Further Education Team of the Year 2022 for the College’s Skills
for Life Department
Winner of BTEC Open Awards” Values Award for Respect 2022
Highly Commended in Educate North’s Business/industry Collaboration Award 2022 category
* Highly Commended in The Assaciation of College’s Beacon Awards’ Best Colloboration Award 2022
category



Stakeholders

The College has many stakehelders including:

* jts current, future and past students;

s« jts staff and their trade unions. The senior leadership team are named on page 1. The trade unions of
which Salford City College staff are members are UNISON, NASLWWT, Mational Education Union, and
University and College Union;
the employers it works with;
the professional organisation for each of the sectors in which it operates;
its partner schools and universities;
the wider college community;

Salford City Council, Greater Manchester Combined Authority and Chambers of Commerce.

- ® ® # @

The College recognises the importance of these relationships and engages in regular communication with its
stakeholders. Particular focus has been given on ensuring strong relationships with employers to support
curriculum development and the learning experience, aligned to the needs of local and regional economic
demands. The College has representatives on a number of key groups and leads in many of these areas.

Public Benefit

Salford City College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by the
Secretary of State for Education. The members of the Corporation, who are trustees of the charity, are disclosed
on page 1. In setting and reviewing the College’s strategic objectives, the Corporation has had due regard for
the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit and particularly upon its supplementary guidance on the
advancement of education.

In delivering its mission, the College provides identifiable public benefits through the advancement of education
to 9,965 students, including 120 students with high needs. The College provides courses without charge to
young people, to those who are unemployed and adults taking English and maths courses. The College adjusts
its courses to meet the needs of local employers and provides training to 1,574 apprentices. The College is
committed to providing information, advice and guidance to the students it enrols and to finding suitable courses
for as many students as possible regardless of their educational background.

The College places significant emphasis on its social remit, and this is at the centre of its practices. The College
also endeavours to find the right course for every learner to enable them to reach their potential,

DEVELOPMENT AND PERFORMANCE
Financial Results

The College focuses on monitering performance based on its operating position, which excludes the pension
adjustment, The College generated a surplus excluding pension adjustment of £463k (2020-21: £1,672k surplus).
The College has performed meore favourably than budgeted in its financial plan.

The College received 89% of its total income from funding bodies, mest notably from the Education and Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA) for 16-18 provision. The increase in funding body grant income from the prior year was
largely due to 16-18 funding from the ESFA, following significantly increased student numbers above target in
2020-21 under the lagged funding model. The College has again received additional in-year funding in relation
to Covid-19 in 2021-22 from the ESFA 16-19 Tuition Fund, to support small group tuition to facilitate catch-up
and focussed learning. As a result of these additional income streams, there has been an increase in staff and
other operating costs from the prior year.

The College generated a deficit before other gains and losses in the year of £2,761k (2020-21: deficit of £656k).

The actuarial gain on the pension schemes has resulted in a total comprehensive gain for the year of £26,644k
[2020-21: £1,067k gain).

During the year, the College incurred restructuring costs of £80k (2020-21 £90k).



Financial Results (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the College held net current assets of £5,280k (2020-21: £4,267k). The movement in
year reflects an improvement in the cash position. The College held total net assets of £26,824k (2020-21:
£180k}, which includes a defined benefit pension liability of Enil (2020-21: £26,181k liability).

Covid-19 impact

Following the pandemic’s profound impact an the College’s finances in 2015-20, and the subsequent recovery of
its financial position in 2020-21, the College has faced a reduced level of challenge from the pandemic in 2021-
22, with minimal impact on the College’s commercial income. Conversely, the College was able to support
learners catch up with core education through receipt of a 16-19 Tuition Fund allocation for small group tuition.
Despite both sector-specific and wider economic challenges faced in year, the College has exceeded its financial
plan, and continues to focus on building strong financial foundations.

Cash flows and liquidity

The College’s net cash flow from operating activities was £3,043k (2020-21; £7,241k), which was a significant
decrease from the prior year. This reduction is due to the increased deficit for the year of £2,761k (2020-21:
£656k) and an overall decrease in creditors as the College releases capital grants into the income statement. The
College’s overall net cash inflow is £1,158k (2020-21: £4,898k), after financing £1,204k of tangible fixed asset
purchases and total debt servicing costs of £681k.

The College holds two loans, one being a £5.375m loan with a fixed interest rate of 5.367% and the other being
a £2.5m loan with a variable interest rate of Base Rate plus 1.9%. The outstanding balance on the loans was
£5.784m on 31* July 2022 (31* July 2021: £6.212m).

The size of the College’s total borrowing and its approach to interest rates has been calculated to ensure a
reasonable cushion between the total cost of servicing debt and operating cashflow. During the year this margin
was easily exceeded and the loan covenants were complied with. During the year the College successfully
requested improved loan covenant arrangements on the variable loan, improving on temporary arrangements
secured in the prior year.

Capital expenditure funded by cash reserves increased in year in line with improved cash balances.

Mo financial support was applied for by the College.
Developments

The College’s ongoing investment in its estate continued, with tangible fixed asset additions during the year
amounting to £1,242k. This was split between property improvements of £580k, fixtures and fittings of £120k,
and equipment purchases of £539k, and assets under canstruction of £3k,

This investment includes the remaining £234k of capital funding that the College received in 2020 from the
Department for Education’s Further Education Capital Allocation (FECA) to undertake remedial work to upgrade
the condition of the estate. Also included is £15k of funding for T-Level equipment received from the ESFA, and
£33k funding for the creation of digital delivery space from the Department for Education via a joint bid by the
Greater Manchester Colleges Group.

Reserves

The College has accumulated reserves of £26,314k and cash balances of £10,223k. The accumulated reserves
excluding the defined pension asset in relation to the LGPS pension scheme also stand at £26,314k, The College
wishes to continue to accumulate reserves and cash balances to create a contingency fund and to fund the further
development of the College estate.

Sources of Income
The College continues ta have significant reliance on the education sector funding bodies as its principal funding

source, largely from recurrent grants. In 2021-22, the Further Education funding bodies provided 89% of the
College's total income (2020-21: B9%).



Sources of Income (continued)

The Covid-13 pandemic reinforced the importance of diverse income streams to support the College’s financial
position, The College’s reliance on funding body income was maintained in year, linked to the recruitment of 16-
19 students and receipt of the ESFA's 16-19 Tuition Fund.

Group Companies

The College had one subsidiary company, EdJobs Limited, which has not traded for some years. Following an
application to Companies House, it was dissolved on 17 November 2020,

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Future developments

The ambition of the College is to create a curriculum and supporting infrastructure which is distinctive and meets
the needs of individual learners. The College has two sixth form centres, together with a range of vocational
skills centres placed in areas of defined need, and will maintain its five college and two brand approach with
distinctive cultures serving the needs of specific cohorts of students across the City.

The College’s vision, aims and objectives establish a clear emphasis on quality, efficiency, growth, and
sustainahbility, Following the progress made in 2020-21, the financial year 2021-22 has seen significant further
developments in the College, and has laid the foundation to enable future significant change to support the
College's key aims, namely to establish financial stability and invest in quality improvement,

Linked to modest demographic increases in school leavers in the local area over the next five years, the College
is well positioned to be the destination of choice, with ever increasing standards of educational delivery. Our
curriculum offering will continue to reflect current and future needs of our local community and the City's
economic development, and is responsive to national changes. It is well designed to support the ongoing
development of T-Levels, and to accommodate a new era of student, where outcomes are not compromised post
pandemic.

A new strategic plan for 2022 to 2025 has been developed, reflecting the progress made during the year, and the
Skills and Post-16 Education Act 2022, The College is well placed to respond to further education reform, and to
support the development of skills to meet economic needs. At the heart of the future strategy remains the same
vision and core guiding principles, with a balance struck between growth and the need to maintain guality,
efficiency and sustainability, and with an emphasis on educating the whole person, employability skills, positive
progression outcomes, and ensuring local people secure local jobs.

A greater focus on technology and more versatile curriculum delivery has arisen in recent years, and this will
continue to be invested in moving forward to support the quality objective. Online and blended learning models
have the potential to further enhance standards and reach a greater number of students, thus also supporting
the growth objective, including the potential for more adult learners to take on studies. Mot all learners will
engage effectively with remote delivery learning models however, and any such provision would be tailored to
ensure quality and optimal the learner experience,

With the pandemic highlighting the feasibility of areas of hybrid working, there is the potential for the College to
continue to grow without the need for additional estate to support the College’s professional functions, and
further support the efficiency objective.

The College has secured £4.067m funding from the Department for Education’s Further Education Capital
Transformation Fund, to undertake significant capital works to upgrade the condition of the estate across three
campuses, namely Pendleton, CitySkills and Worsley. Work will commence in August 2022 and is anticipated to
be complete by December 2024,

Financial plan

The College Governors approved a financial plan in July 2022, which sets ohjectives for the period to July 2023,
The College aims to maintain its financial health rating of ‘Outstanding’, and to achieve a small surplus excluding
pension adjustment in the year to 317 July 2023,



Financial plan {continued)

Sound financial planning is even more critical for the College due to the cost of living crisis. |In developing the
financial plan for the 2022-23 financial year, a detailed review of the College's income streams and cost base has
been undertaken, to create a robust baseline budget, on which the decision-making process for the College can
be based. There is a clear understanding of the financial position across the Corporation and senior leadership
team, and a commitment to continuing to steer the College on a sound financial base and to financial
sustainability.

Whilst the College has increasing levels of 16-18 funding following recent growth in student numbers and the
increase in the national funding rate for 2022-23, mitigation plans are being formulated to enable the College to
be responsive to fluctuations in financial performance, including the impact of the energy crisis ion the College’s
expenditure budgets. The drive for efficiency and value for money across the whole spectrum of the College's
activities is of paramount importance in order to further secure the College’s financial position and to ensure
continued progress on the path towards financial sustainability.

The College’s College Financial Forecasting Return (CFFR) submitted to the ESFA in July 2022 outlined a financial
health grade of ‘Outstanding’ for the coming year, followed by a grade of 'Good” in 2023-24. Cash is forecast to
he maintained above the College’s internal target. The ambition, based on September 2022 enrolment and
planned growth over the medium term, is for an Outstanding financial health grade to be maintained,

Treasury policies and objectives

Treasury management is the management of the College’s cash flows; its banking, money market and capital
rmarket transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum
performance consistent with those risks. The College has a treasury management policy in place to manage cash
flows and associated risks.

Short term borrowing for temporary revenue purposes is authorised by the College’s Accounting Officer. All
other borrowing requires the authorisation of the Corporation, and compliance with the requirements of the
ESFA Funding Agreement,

The College has no plans to increase long term borrowing. The College has agreement in principle for an overdraft
facility with our primary bankers, should this be required for short term cash flow purposes, but this is not
expected to be required,

Reserves

The College has no formal Reserves Policy but recognises the importance of reserves in the financial stability of
an organisation, and ensures that there are adeguate resources to support the College’s core activities. The
College currently holds no restricted reserves (2020-21: Enil). As at the balance sheet date, the Income and
Expenditure account reserve stands at £26,824k (2020-21: £(363)k). This includes a defined benefit liability of
£nmil (2020-21: £26,181k obligation) in relation to the Local Government Pension Scheme. It is the Corporation’s
intention to increase reserves over the life of the Strategic Plan, by the generation of annual operating surpluses.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The College has well-developed strategies for managing risk and strives to embed risk management in all that it
does. Risk management processes are designed to protect its assets, reputation and financial stability. The
governing body has overall responsibility for risk management, and its approach to managing risks and internal
controls is explained in the Statement on Corporate Governance,

A risk register is maintained at the College level which is reviewed monthly by the senior leadership team, and
at least annually by the Audit Committee and more frequently where necessary. The risk register identifies the
key risks, the likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact on the College and the actions being
taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised using a consistent scoring system,

The main risk factors which may affect the College are outlined below, along with the action being taken to
minimise them. Mot all factors are within the College’s contrel. Other factors besides those listed below may
also adversely affect the College.



Government funding

The College has considerable reliance on continued government funding through the further education sector
funding bodies, In 2021-22 89% of the College’s revenue was ultimately public funded and this level of
requirement is expected to continue, There can be no assurance that government policy or practice will remain
the same or that public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same terms.

The College is aware of several issues which may impact on future funding, including the Skills and Post-16
Education Act 2022, the removal of funding for the majority of applied general qualifications such as BTECs, the
DfE's Further Education Funding and Accountability Reform, and the current review of the classification of
colleges by the Office for Mational Statistics. The College, in conjunction with its key stakeholders, continues to
flex and develop strategies for growth in response to the devolution agenda and to these reforms. Itis recognised
that any changes to funding will impact on the College, but the extent and full implications will not be known
until government policy and external reviews have been finalised.

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways:
*  Funding is derived through a number of direct and indirect contractual arrangements;
* By ensuring the College is rigorous in defivering high guality education and training;

* Considerable focus and investment are placed on maintaining and managing key relationships with the
various funding bodies;

«  Ensuring the College is focused on those priority sectors which will continue to benefit from public
funding;

+  Regular dialogue with the funding bodies;

s Having an outward focus to ensure strong stakeholder relationships and that provision meets the skills
agenda and needs of the local economy;

+  Exploring potential new income streams to underpin the College’s income levels.
Maintain adequate funding of pension liabilities

The financial statements report the share of the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit on the College’s
balance sheet in line with the requirements of FRS 102,

This risk is mitigated by an agreed deficit recovery plan with the Greater Manchester Pension Scheme.

Failure to maintain the financial viability of the College

The College’s current financial health grade is classified as 'Outstanding’ as described above. Notwithstanding
that, the continuing challenge to the College's financial position remains the constraint on further education
funding arising from a sustained period of cuts in public sector spending and increasing costs, whilst maintaining
the student experience. Whilst the rate of funding has increased for the 2022-23 financial year, there is
significant challenge in recruiting and retaining learners and staff. Any increase in income is more than offset by
cost pressures from inflation, energy prices, and cost of living expectations.

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways:
s Creation of detailed curriculum delivery plans
= Regular engagement with learners to ensure progress and provide support
» Versatile marketing plans to deliver targets

= Close working with partners and key stakeholders to strengthen our provision offering and
communication

* By rigorous budget setting procedures;

«  Maintenance of a contingency budget to underpin the College's financial position

*  Sensitivity analysis of income streams, with mitigation plans to address different scenarios including
cost reduction

+  Continuous in-year budget monitoring and forecasting, with ongoing analysis of income levels against
target



Failure to maintain the financial viability of the College (continued)

*  Tight budgetary control to understand and address increased costs
s  Robust financial controls;
+« Exploring ongoing procurement efficiencies;

»  [iversification of income streams.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

The College is committed to reducing its carbon emissions and has taken the following measures in the year to
improve energy efficiency:

«  Measure 1; To develop a Heat Decarbonisation Plan to help identify the decarbonisation opportunities
available through:
o Changes to operation and system/building upgrades
o Replacement of conventional building heating systems with low carbon alternatives.

* Measure 2: Over cladding the ‘Old Building” at Pendleton and the ‘Glasshouse’ at Worsley College, both
addressing the poor condition of the concrete facade and failing windows which are thermally
inefficient resulting in excessive heat loss which has also affects energy costs and carbon footprint.

The College’s greenhouse gas emissions and energy use for the period are set out below:

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 1 August 2021 to | 1 August 2020 to
| _ 31uly2022 | 31july2021

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) 7,066,950 6,147,027

Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Gas consumption 507 516

Owned transport 11 5

Total 518 521

Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Purchased electricity BET 692

Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Business travel in employes owned vehicles 19 8

Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 1,424 1,221

Intensity ratio: Metric tonnes per staff member 2.18 1.75

Qualification and reporting methodology

The College has followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. In addition, the College
has also used the GHG Reporting Protocol = Corporate Standard, and the 2021 UK Government’s Conversion
Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensity ratio
The College’s chosen intensity measurement ration is emissions in metric tonnes (CO2e) per staff member.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The College is committed to observing the importance of sector measures and indicators, and uses the
Department for Education (DfE) performance tables and National Achievement Rate tables (MART) to benchmark.
However, due to the pandemic, the results for both 2019-20 and 2020-21 were not officially reported for any
provider, but this will return to pre-pandemic reporting from 2021-22. The College is required to complete the
annual College Financial Forecasting Return (CFFR) for the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), in which
the College is assessed by the ESFA as having ‘Outstanding” financial health.



Student numbers

In 2021-22 the College delivered activity against its main funding body allocations as follows:

* 16-18 funding allocation £24,098k, with 4,572 learners (2020-21: £23,084k with 4,718 learners)
+  ESFA Adult Skills Budget allocation, including community learning, of £11k (2020-21: £13k)
«  GMCA Adult Skills Budget allocation, including community learning, of £6,027k (2020-21: £5,961k)
* 16-18 Apprenticeship allocation and levy income of £3,512k (2020-21: £2,989k)
Value Added

Value added measures overall student performance, taking into account the number of subjects and the quality
of teaching and learning. The Quality Indicator (Q) score and grade indicates the progress made across all
examination entries, containing every grade taken by each subject, and thus giving a clear view of overall
curriculum performance, The Ql compares the total actual points with the total expected points, Outcomes are
graded from 1 to 9 to show performance against national benchmarks, where 1 is “best possible”, 2 is
“outstanding”, 3 is “excellent” and 4 is “very good”. A Grade 1 Alps indicates performance in the top 1% in the
country, as students perform better than 99% of other sixth form establishments when compared to students
with the same GCSE grades on entry.

Following the learning from the 2020 summer examinations under Centre Assessed Grades (CAG), the
Government and Ofgual agreed to award Teacher Assessed Grades (TAG) for the 2021 examination series. The
TAG was the teacher's professional judgement of the most likely grade a student would have achieved if exams
had gone ahead. The College’s teachers based this grade on a range of evidence including mock exams,
coursework, homework assignments and any other records of student performance over the course of study.
The 2022 examination series returned to pre-pandemic practices, meaning this year is the first set of 'real’ results
that have been externally assessed in two years, with the students being assessed not having taken formal
examinations in that time, including their GC5Es and lower sixth examinations. To recognise the potential for
students to have had a higher or inflated GCSE grade profile on entry, A& Level students did receive advanced
notice of exam content.

At A level, the College has achieved a value added score of 3 (2020-21; 2), reflecting the impact of the pandemic
on the grading system during 2019-20 and 2020-21. This consolidates the College's progress since a score of 4
in 2018-19 and 6 in 2017-18 and 2016-17.

For Advanced Level Vocational, the College has achieved a value added score of 5 {2020-21: 2), in part reflecting
the pandemic's impact, following progress in recent years which saw a score of 2 in 2018-19, 3in 2017-18 and a
5in 2016-17, The 2021-22 academic year was the first year for externally set vocational exams, for a cohort of
students who had not sat GCSEs, and for which no Advanced Information was provided to aid students in their
exams, unlike & Level students.

Student achievements

Students continue to thrive at the College. Achievement rates at the College continue to be good, including
apprenticeships. 96% of students moved into employment, further or higher education after they completed
their college course.

The overall 16-18 achievement rate has been sustained at a high level, with A-Levels having a pass rate of 98.8%
(2020-21 99.9%; pre-pandemic 2018-19 98.9%), and Vocationals having a pass rate of 97.7% (2020-21 99.9%;
pre-pandemic 2018-19 98.7%). 19+ achievermnent rates have been maintained at 84.3% (2020-21: 84%). The
overall apprenticeship success rate is 56.1% (2020-21: 68.3%), which is above national benchmarks.

Financial results
The College is subject to assessment on its financial performance against a series of key performance indicators

relevant to the Further Education sector, from both the ESFA as its main funding body , as well as against the FE
Commissioner benchmarks, These are set out in the table below,
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Measure | 2021-22 2020-21

Adjusted Current Ratio =14 | 2.14 20
Education-specific EBITDA as % of adjusted > 6% T 6.96% 11.38%
income |
Borrowing as a % of income < 35% 14.42% 16.36%
ESFA Financial Health Rating Good or Dutstanding ; Outstanding | Outstanding
Adjusted operating surplus (as a % of income) = 1% : 1.11% 4.40%
Debt service cover ratio =2 4.47 12.07
Cash days in hand »25 | 100 o8
Pay costs as a % of adjusted income <65% [General FE College) | B5.04% 63.61%

<70% (Sixth Form College) |

Quality of Provision

The College was subjected to an Ofsted Short Inspection Visit in December 2019, the outcome was that the
College continues to be a Good provider (Grade 2).

The Inspectors made a judgement on a four-point scale:

1. Qutstanding (Grade 1)

2. Good [Grade 2)

3. Requires Improvement (Grade 3)
4.  Inadequate (Grade 4)

The inspection was conducted under the new Education Inspection Framework and focused on Quality of
Education and Leadership & Management. All campuses and provision types were inspected: young people,
adults, apprenticeships and high needs learners. Outcomes from the report highlight how far the College has
travelled and praised the way leaders strive to ensure every student gains the very best possible outcomes,

The Corporation were pleased with the outcome of the Inspection Visit and the College continues to monitor
progress against any recommendations made and ensure that high standards are maintained,

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY
Equality

Salford City College is fully committed to ensuring and delivering equality of opportunity for all its students and
staff. The College is committed to ensuring the elimination of all forms of unfair and illegal discrimination, as
well as all forms of harassment and victimisation. We respect and value positively differences in race, gender,
sexual orientation, disability, religion or belief and age.

The College's Single Equality Scheme is published on the College’s website. The College publishes an Annual
Equality Report and Equality Objectives to ensure compliance with all relevant equality legislation including the
Equality Act 2010, The College undertakes equality impact assessments on all new policies and procedures.
Equality impact assessments are also undertaken for existing policies and procedures on a prioritised basis.

The College’s Single Equality Scheme is reviewed each year and monitored by managers and the Corporation.

The College has developed and implemented a Single Equality Scheme and Action Plan which provides an
overview in regard to how the College will meet its eguality duty; how the College will handle any cases of
harassment and unlawful discrimination; how policies, processes and plans will be monitored for adverse impact;
how the overall practice and cutcomes of the College will be monitored; and how action will be planned and
delivered to address any concerns that are identified.
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Equality (continued)

The Single Equality Scheme supports the menitoring of the protected characteristics of students and staff so that
continuous improvement can be achieved, The College will continue to meet these duties through the ongoing
development of the Single Equality Scheme and Action Plan,

The College considers all employment applications from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the
individuals concerned, and guarantees an interview to any disabled applicant who meets the essential criteria
for the post. Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made to ensure that employment
with the college continues. The College's policy is to provide training, career development and opportunities for
promotion which, as far as possible, provide identical opportunities to those of non-disabled employees.

The College is a ‘Disability Confident Employer’ and has committed to the principles and objectives of Disability
Confident standard.

The College has a Wellbeing Strategy for Staff and students and continues to implement a variety of initiatives in
support of staff mental and physical wellbeing.

The College provides Equality & Diversity training and refresher training to all staff on an ongoing basis.

The College publishes its annual gender pay gap report on the website,

Disability statement
The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010:

1. Buildings are accessible (insofar as is practical), with ramps at each site to allow wheelchair access.

2. There is a list of specialist equipment, such as audio visual facilities, which the College can make available
for use by students.

3. The College has separate admissions policies for further education (FE) and higher education (HE). These
cover fair admission and the process in which to appeal an admissions decision,

4,  The College has a number of Education Support Assistants and Learning Support Assistants who provide a
variety of support for students whao have learning difficulties or disabilities.

5. Counselling and welfare support are available via our Student Services team. Both counselling and welfare
appointments are available to students.

Trade union facility time

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 require the College to publish
information on facility time arrangements for trade union officials at the College.

In accordance with the requirements, the following information was published for the period 1* April 2021 to
31* March 2022,

Numbers of employees who were relevant union officials during the period FTE employee number
& 5.78
Percentage of time Mumber of employees
0% 1]
1-50% &
51-99% o
100% ]
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Total cost of facility time £5,196

Total pay bill £24,619,930

Percentage of total bill spent on facility time 0.021%

Total number of hours spent on paid facility time 172 |

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time 0% |
GOING CONCERN

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Corporation considers that the College has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.,

The College has risen to the challenges in relation to the impact of the increasing cost of living. 2021-22 has met
with some challenges in terms of higher interest rates, energy prices, and general cost inflation, but the College
has performed strongly and has increased its cash balances by over £1m. The College’s performance in-year
allows for a financial health rating of ‘Outstanding’ for 2021-22, which maintains the rating from the prior year.

Whilst income from Higher Education has reduced in-year due to student recruitment being lower than
anticipated both internally and from universities who subcontract provision to the College, this reduction has
heen more than offset by additional income for our 16-18 students, including the ESFA’s 16-19 Tuition Fund,
apprenticeship income and other income. This has been further supported by savings in staff costs compared
to budget, and allowed the College to invest in-year in equipment, environment and resources to support our
students.

Moving forward, the College has increased activity for the Core 16-18 funded students and, after consolidating
the gains of 2020-21 by retzining students in 2021-22, is on & continual trajectory for growth in this area as it is
meeting the requirements to improve quality, grow provision and work on efficiencies, The challenge of meeting
graowth in numbers created by the lagged funding methodology makes it more difficult to increase potential
surpluses, A surplus excluding pension adjustment is planned as part of the 2022-23 budget, with the provision
of a significant contingency.

Detailed work on the 2022-23 baseline budget and 2023-24 financial plan has been undertaken to ensure that
the College is able to meet needs and serve the local community. Any further significant increases in prices
related to cost of living, for example interest rates or energy prices, would impact on the College. Sensitivity
analysis has been undertaken to identify how the College can address and manage this. There is a contingency
built into the budget for the coming year alongside a surplus. In addition, mitigation plans have been proposed
and there are actions which can be taken to reduce costs.

Given the increase in the funding formula for 16-18 students from 2022-23, and even taking into consideration
the potential in-year strain caused by the lagged funding model, the College is in a position to capitalise on its
recent growth. A year of limited growth is expected in 2022-23 from both progressing and recruited students,
and this is barne out in enrolment numbers, Early recruitment of 16-18 year olds on study programmes is
showing that the College will meet the current ESFA allocation, putting it in the position of a positive start to
2022-23, Further growth is then expected in 2023-24 and beyond in line with demographic trends.

The majority of other sources of income are reasonably secure, Adult courses funded by the Greater Manchester
Combined Authority are at the same contractual level to the previous year, with some additional funds provided
for late achievements. Loan funded courses are at a slightly reduced level, but this has been factored into the
budget for 2022-23. The Higher Education market also remains extremely competitive which may impact on the
number of students taking up their places at the College.

Apprenticeships have seen continued growth over the last year, and is expected to grow further in 2022-23 and
beyond. There are also other areas where income is likely to increase from prior year levels as the College
focuses on developing its grant funding and commercial activities.
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Going concern (continued)

Cash balances are planned to decrease slightly from the current high level over the next two years due to
planned investment in the College’s physical environment. Balances will however remain above the College’s
internal target. They also remain sufficient throughout the year, despite the cyclical low point in February and
March linked to the ESFA payment profile.

Capital expenditure is at a conservative level to retain healthy cash balances. The College has sufficient space
to accommodate the anticipated growth in numbers and whilst reconfiguration and updating of the estate will
be progressed, it does not need to expand the estate, The focus is on ensuring it is meeting Health & Safety
standards and running as efficiently as possible. Use of cash balances to match fund external capital funding has
been modelled into the College’s financial plans to ensure affordability, and will enable the College to make
necessary investment whilst only bearing 40% of the cost,

The continuing challenge to the College’s financial position remains the constraint on further education funding,
as well as inflationary and cost of living pressures, whilst maintaining the student experience. This risk is
mitigated in a number of ways:

. By rigorous budget setting procedures and sensitivity analysis
. Regular in year budget monitoring

. Robust financial controls

. Exploring ongoing procurement efficiencies

As aresult, the Corporation considers that the College has adeguate operational resources to continue existence
for the foreseeable future.

OTHER INFORMATION

Salford Academy Trust

Salford City College was the sponsor for Salford Academy Trust along with its education partners, University of
Salford and the local authority, Salford City Council. Salford Academy Trust was incorporated on 21 June 2012
as a company limited by guarantee. The Trust oversaw the conversion to Academy status of four schools since
September 2012 = The Albion Academy, Marlborough Road Academy, Dukesgate Academy and Irlam and
Cadishead College. The Salford Academy Trust is a related party of Salford City College and transactions with
the Trust are included in Note 24, The Acadermnies within the Trust transferred to the United Learning Trust on
1 February 2019, The Trustees are in the process of closing the Salford Academy Trust, Following transfer, the
Trustees commenced a process of closure for Salford Academy Trust, with the Trust placed into solvent
liquidation on 10" September 2021, The approval of the liquidation is currently with HMRC, and is anticipated
by December 2022,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 November 2022, the Office for National Statistics reclassified all college corporations as public sector
institutions and this prompted the Department for Education to introduce some new rules for colleges, some of
which will take effect immediately and others during the transitional arrangements to Autumn 2024,

There are no ather significant post balance sheet events,

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are each aware,
there is no relevant audit information of which the College’s auditors are unaware; and each member has taken
all the steps that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the College’s auditors are aware of that information.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 13 Decemnber 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

J. Flynn
Chair
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control

The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the College to obtain
a better understanding of its governance and legal structure. This statement covers the period from 1 August
2021 to 31 July 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The College endeavours to conduct its business:

i in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in Public Life
{selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership);
il in full accordance with the guidance to colleges from the Association of Colleges in The Code of Good
Governance [“the Code”); and
i having due regard to the 2018 edition of the UK Corporate Governance Code insofar as it is applicable
to the further education sector,

The College is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance. |n carrying out its
responsibilities, it takes full account of and complies with The Code of Good Governance for English Colleges
issued by the Association of Colleges in March 2015, which it formally adopted in August 2015,

In the opinion of the members of the Corporation, the College complies with the provisions of the Code, and it
has complied throughout the year ended 31 July 2022, The Corporation recognises that, as a body entrusted
with both public and private funds, it has a particular duty to observe the highest standards of corporate
governance at all times.

We have not adopted and therefore do not apply the UK Corporate Governance Code, However, we have
reported on our Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing upon best practice available, including those
aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code we consider relevant to the further education sector and best
practice.

The College is an exempt charity within the meaning of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. The members of the
Corporation, who are also the Trustees for the purposes of the Charities Act 2011, confirm that they have had
due regard to the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit and that the required statements appear
glsewhere in the financial statements.

Members of the Corporation

The members who served on the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature of this report were
as listed below:

Member Date of Term of Office Role Committee membership Attendance |
appointment Ends
lackie Fiynn Extended 31 July 2023 Independent Chailr of Corporation 15/15
14 December 2020 member Strategy Finance and Resources {Chair)

Quality and Standards

Governance and Search (Vice Chalr)
Remuneration [Chair]

Human Resources and Organisational

Development
Adarn Fidler 5 Juby 2021 31 July 2025 Independent Vice Chair of Corporation a/10
Vice Chair from 21 Membar Strategy, Finance & Resources
March 2022 Quality & Standards [Chair)
Charles Davies Reappointed 31 March 2025 Independent Human Resowrces and Organisational | 9/11
14 December 2020 member Dewvelopment (Vice Chair)

Strategy Finance and Resaurces
Governance & Search

Audit
Paul Johnson Reappainted Reslgned Independent Audit [Chair) 417
27 July 2020 28 June 2022 member Remuneration
Anthony Redmond Extendod 31 July 2026 Independent Strategy, Finance & Resources (Vice 14/14
21 March 2022 mermbeer Chair}

Human Resources and Organlsational
Development {Chair)

Remuneration

Governance & Search
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Member Date of Term of Office Role Committee membership Attendance
appointment Ends
Prof, Carcle Roberts Extended Resigned 1B Independent Human Resources and Organisational | /9
14 December 2020 May 2022 member Development
Quality & Standards [Chair)
Remuneratian (Vice Chair}
Governance and Search
Michael Sharples Extended 31 December | Independent Strategy Finance and Resources 6/7
16 Decemnber 2019 2023 maemkbser
Lia Chamma 1 August 2021 31 July 2022 Student Quality and Standards 6/7
Rebecca Parks Effective from 12™ Ex officio Group Principal | Human Resources and Crganisaticnal 13/16
October 2021 as Development
Acting Principal Governance and Search
Appointed as Group Quality and Standards
Principal 14 Strategy Finance and Resources
February 2022
Pat Walkington Extended Resigned 28 Independent Vice Chair of Corporation 9/9
14 December 2020 February 2022 member Governance and Search (Chair)
Remuneration
Quality and Standards [Vice Chair]
Audit [Vice Chair)
PFaula Summersfield 16 December 2019 31 December Independent Strategy, Finance & Resources 6/7
2023 Mamber
Shane Thompson 16 December 2019 31 December Independent Strategy, Finance & Resources 507
2023 Mamber
Sally Kells 20 April 2020 20 April 2024 Independent Audit 3f4
[Leave of Member Gowvernance and Search
absence
granted from 1
Jan 2022 1o 31
July 20232)
Amy Vaughan 1 August 2013 31 July 2022 Staff Quality and Standards 7
Sam Butler 16 May 2022 15 May 2026 Independent {Human Resources and Organisational 5/5
Member Development as Co-optee)
Audit Committee [Chalr fram
September 2022)
Janet Ndungu 21 March 2027 20 March 2026 Independent 171
Member
Dir Martin Toner 5 Juby 2022 31 July 2026 Independent 1/1
Member
Adrian Connell 20 September 2022 31 August 2026 Independent Audit  Committee {Vice Chair from | 0/0
Member Nowvemnber 2022)
Lucy Robinson 20 September 2032 31 August 2026 Independent Audit Committee [previously Co-optee] 4/a
Member
Roger Cunliffe 1 August 2022 31 July 2026 Staff Quality & Standards Committes oo
Martin Townsend 1 August 2022 31 July 202G Staff Audit Committes 0o
Kenda Ebeidin 1 September 2022 31 August 2023 Student Ouality & Standards Committea 0/
Matalia Dimitrova 7 November 2022 31 August 2023 | Student Quality & Standards Committes 0o

Denize Hark is the current Clerk to the Corporation.

Co-optees

The Corporation has also strategically appointed a number of Co-optees to serve on the committees most
appropriate to their skills. Co-optees are not members of the Corporation and do not attend Corporation

meetings.
Member Date of Term of Office Role Committee membership Attendance
appointment Ends

Clir. lohm Walsh 26 March 2018 26 March 2022 Co-optea Quality and Standards 1/2

Lucy Robinson 27 July 2020 27 July 2024 Co-aptee Audit Committes 4/4

Sam Butler 12 April 2021 Maoved to Co-optes Human Resources and Organisational | 3/3
Eowernor Development
pasition on 16
May 20232

Ann Gavin-Dakey 21 March 2022 31 July 2024 Co-optes Human Rescurces and Organisational | 00

Development
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The governance framework

It is the Corporation’s responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standards of conduct.

The Corperation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial performance of the
College together with other information such as performance against funding targets, proposed capital
expenditure, quality matters and personnel-related matters such as health and safety and environmental issues.
The Corporation meets at least once a term.

The Corporation conducts its business through a number of committees. Each committee has terms of
reference, which have been approved by the Corporation. These committees are Strategy Finance & Resources,
Human Resources & Organisational Development, Remuneration, Governance & Search, Quality & Standards
and Audit. The full minutes of all meetings, except those deemed to be confidential by the Corporation, are
available on the College’s website www.salfordcc.ac.uk or from the Clerk to the Corporation at the Corporation’s
registered address:

Salford City College
Pendleton College
Dronfield Road
Salford M& 7FR

The Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the members of the
Corporation. The register is available for inspection at the above address.

All members of the Corporation are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties
at the College’s expense and have access to the Clerk to the Corporation, who is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that all applicable procedures and regulations are complied with. The appointment, evaluation and
remaval of the Clerk are matters for the Corporation as a whaole.

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to members in a timely manner, prior to Board meetings.
Briefings are also provided on an ad hoc basis.

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group dominates its
decision-making process. The Corporation considers that each of its non-executive members is independent of
management and free from any business or other relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgement.

There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair and Accounting Officer are separate.

Covid-19 impact

All Corporation and committee meetings were held either in person or using video conferencing during the
academic year 2021-22, The Emergency Planning Group which had been established in the year 20159-20
continued in operation and considered the College’s re-opening plans and the implications of Covid-15 on the
College.

Appointments to the Corporation

Any new appointments to the Corporation are a matter for consideration of, and approval by, the Corporation
as a whole. The Corporation has a Governance & Search Committee consisting of five members of the
Corporation, which is responsible for interviewing and nominating new members for the Corporation’s
consideration. The Corporation is responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is provided.

Members of the Corporation are initially appointed for a term of office of four years and are eligible for
reappointment for a further term of office dependent on meeting the Corporation’s KPls on attendance and
engagement. The Corporation takes account of the AoC recommendations regarding the maximum term of
office of governors. However, it has agreed that there should be a balance between experienced governors and
newer governors in the interest of ensuring stability and meeting the needs of the College. Two of the current
twelve independent governors have served for more than the recommended maximum of two four-year periods
of office.
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Co-optees

The Corporation has appointed a number of Co-optees. Co-optees are not members of the Corporation, but are
strategically appointed to provide specialist expertise in selected areas. At 31 July 2022, there were two Co-
optees serving on the committees appropriate to their skills: one on the Audit Committes and one on the Human
Resources & Organisational Development Committes,

Corporation Performance

The Corporation carried out a Self-Assessment of its performance against a wide range of criteria for the year
ended 31 July 2022. In line with the OFSTED criteria for Leadership and Management within the Education
Inspection Framework, it assessed itself as Good. This assessment is in line with the OFSTED view of Leadership
and Management undertaken during their inspection in December 2019.

Activities Undertaken to develop Governors and the Governance Professional

A Skills Audit was undertaken in September 2021 to enable Corporation to identify skills gaps. In addition,
individual governor development interviews are conducted annually by the Chair to assess training and
development needs and secure feedback on performance. The Chair's performance is also evaluated annually
by governors through a Chair's Evaluation Questionnaire (drawn up from AoC guidance) and the results are
considered by the Corporation and validated by an external reviewer,

The following training has been undertaken during the year to develop governors’ understanding of their role
and widen their knowledge in specific areas:

«  All governors complete Prevent training on appointment, followed up by a refresher course every two
years.
*  Three governors completed Transgender Awareness training.
s Two governors attended the AoC Governor conference and the Staff Governor attended the AoC Staff
Governor conference.
*  One governor completed the AoC New Governor induction course,
+ The Student Governor attended the AoC Student Governor induction course.
+  Briefings were provided for all governors on the following areas:
o Reserves and Cash Balances
o The Higher Education Landscape
o Estates Strategy
o College Strategy & Performance

The Clerk completed the AoC Governance Professionals Development — Expert Level programme between
October 2021 and March 2022 and also attended the full day Governance Professionals North meeting held in
May 2022,

Internal and External Reviews of Governance

The Corporation carried out a comprehensive internal review of governance in lanuary 2022 which resulted in
the following changes being put into place:;

+  Anincrease in the number of staff and student governors to two in each category;

#  The further expansion of the Lead Governor scheme to add additional areas of responsibility including
SEMD, Business, Higher Education and Sustainability.

s A dedicated Succession Planning Task Group being established to look at all aspects of succession
planning for governors,

Corporation did not commission an external review of governance in 2021-22 due to the substantial changes in
mermbership, including the resignation of the Vice Chair and the appointment of the Group Principal, An audit
of corporate governance, carried out by the College’s Internal Auditors, is planned for the Autumn term 2022
followed by an external review of governance in spring/summer 2023.
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Remuneration Committee

In the year ending 31 July 2022, the College's Remuneration Committee membership comprised five members
of the Corporation. The committee's responsibilities are to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, and remuneration and benefits, of the Accounting Officer and other senior post-holders.
Decisions on remuneration are made following consideration of comparative, and other pertinent data,
including performance. The Corporation has not adopted the AOC's Senior Staff Remuneration code, but
continues to have due regard for it.

Details of remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2022 are set out in Note 8 to the financial statements.
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is comprised of three members of the Corporation {excluding the Accounting Officer and
Chair) and one Co-optee. The Committes operates in accordance with written terms of reference approved by
the Corporation. The Audit Committee meets on a termly basis and provides a forum for reporting by the
College’s internal, regularity and financial statements auditors, who have access to the Committee for
independent discussion, without the presence of College management, The Committee also receives and
considers reports from the main FE funding bodies as they affect the College’s business,

The College’s internal auditors review the systems of internal control, risk management controls and governance
processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings to management and the Audit
Committee.

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and internal audit
undertakes periodic follow-up reviews to ensure such recommendations have been implemented.

The Audit Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal auditors, reporting
accountants and financial statements auditors and their remuneration for both audit and non-audit work as well
as reporting annually to the Corporation.

The Audit Committee met on three occasions in the year to 31 July 2022, The members of the Audit Committes
and their attendance records are shown below;

Committee Member Meetings attended

Paul Johnson (Chair) 2/3

Pat Walkington 2/2 (resigned 28 February 2022)
Charles Davies 1/2

Sally Kells 1/1

Sam Butler 1/1

Lucy Robinson {Co-optee) ETE]
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INTERNAL CONTROL
Scope of responsibility

The Corporation is ultimately responsible for the College's system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Group Principal & Chief Executive, as
Accounting Officer, for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the
College’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which they are
personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to them in the Funding Agreement
hetween Salford City College and the funding bodies. They are also responsible for reporting to the Corporation
any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reascnable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Salford City College for the year ended 31
July 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts,

Capacity to handle risk

The Corporation has reviewed the key risks to which the College is exposed together with the operating, financial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Corporation is of the view
that there is a formal ongeoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the College's significant risks that
has been in place for the year ending 31 July 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the Corporation.

The risk and control framework

The system of internal contrel is based on a framework of regular management information, administrative
procedures including the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and accountability. This includes:
* comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and agreed by the
Corporation;
s  regular reviews by the Corporation of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial
performance against forecasts;
*  sotting targets to measure financial and other performance;
+ clearly defined capital investrnent control guidelines; and
s the adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate,

The College has an internal audit service, which operates in accordance with the reguirements of the E5FA's Post
16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit service is informed by an analysis of the risks to which
the College is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis. The analysis of risks and the
internal audit plans are endorsed by the Corporation on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. At
minimum annually, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) provides the Corporation with a report on internal audit
activity in the College. The report includes the HIA's independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the College’s system of risk management, controls and governance processes.
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Risks faced by the Corporation

The College has well-developed strategies for managing risk and strives to embed risk management in all that it
does. Risk management processes are designed to protect its assets, reputation and financial stability. The
governing body has overall responsibility for risk management. Individual risks identified are allocated to
appropriate Corporation committees, and reviewed as part of the reporting processes.

A risk register is maintained at the College level which is reviewed monthly by the senior leadership team, and
at least annually by the Audit Committee and more freguently where necessary. The risk register identifies the
key risks, the likelihood of those risks occurring, their potential impact on the College and the actions being
taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised using a consistent scoring system.

The Audit Committee directs the work of the internal auditors, who develop their annual plan taking a risk-based
approach, prior to submission to the Corporation for approval.

As a result of the risks arising from the pandemic, additional action has been required, agreed and implemented
to facilitate the operating of the College in a Covid-19 safe environment. There is also ongoing additional
oversight in relation to the risk of cyber attacks, both due the increased dependence on the use of technology
for blended and remote delivery when required, but also the increased prevalence of cyber crime.

Control weaknesses identified

The Corporation has not identified any significant internal control weaknesses, and no high priority
recommendations or control risks were identified in the internal audits undertaken during the year.

Responsibilities under funding agreements

The Corporation has met regularly throughout the year and has ensured that its contractual responsibilities
under its funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA and Greater Manchester Combined Authority have
been met. Robust policies and standing operating procedures are in place to ensure compliance, which are
regularly updated, monitored and approved by the Corporation.

The Dffice for Students (OfS) requirements have also been complied with.

Statement from the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has advised the Corporation that the Corporation has an effective framework for
governance and risk management in place. The Audit Committee believes the Corporation has effective internal
controls in place.

The specific areas of work undertaken by the Audit Committee in 2021-22 and up to the date of the approval of
the financial statements are detailed below,

Internal audits

#  ESFA Mock Funding

# Safeguarding, including The Prevent Duty

« Health and Safety

« MI5 and Reporting

« [T Data Security and Disaster Recovery Arrangements
s Follow-up of Previous Internal Recommendations

All of these audits were given substantial assurance, with no high-risk recommendations made,
Advisory reviews

+  External Assurance of Sub-Contracting Controls — this annual review is required for any sub-contracting
activity.
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Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Group Principal & Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness
of the system of internal control. Their review of the effectiveness of the system of internal contral is informed

by:

the work of the internal auditors;
the work of the senior leadership team within the College who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framewark; and

# comments made by the College's financial statements auditors, the regularity auditors, and the
appointed funding auditors in their management letters and other reports.

The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of their review of the effectiveness of
the systemn of internal control by the Audit Committee, which oversees the work of the internal auditor and
other sources of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

The Group Principal & Chief Executive and senior leadership team receives reports setting out key performance
and risk indicators and considers possible control issues brought to their attention by early warning mechanisms,
which are embedded within the departments and reinforced by risk awareness training. The Group Principal &
Chief Executive and senior leadership team and the Audit Committee also receive regular reports from internal
audit and other sources of assurance, which include recommendations for improvement.

The Audit Committee’s rale in this area is confined to a high-level review of the arrangements for internal
control. The Corporation's agenda includes a regular item for consideration of risk and contral and receives
reports thereon from the senior leadership team and the Audit Committee. The emphasis is on obtaining the
relevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting by exception. At its December 2022 meeting, the
Corporation carried out the annual assessment for the year ended 31 July 2022 by considering documentation
from the senior leadership team and internal audit, and taking account of events since 31 July 2022,

Based on the advice of the Audit Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Corporation is of the opinion that
the College has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and control, and has
fulfilled its statutory responsibility for “the effective and efficient use of resources, the solvency of the institution
and the body and the sofeguarding of their assets”.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 13 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

s

J. Flynn R. Parks
Chair Accounting Officer
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Accounting Officer, | confirm that the Corporation has had due regard to the requirements of grant funding
agreements and contracts with Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) and has considered its responsibility
to notify ESFA of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of funding.

| confirm on behalf of the Corporation that after due enguiry, and to the best of my knowledge, | am able to
identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the Corporation, or material non-compliance with
the terms and conditions of funding, under the Corporation’s grant funding agreements and contracts with ESFA,
or any other public funder.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to ESFA,.

s

R Parks
Accounting Officer

Date: 13" December 2022

Statement of the chair of governors

On behalf of the Corporation, | confirm that the Accounting Officer has discussed their statement of regularity,
propriety and compliance with the board and that | am content that it is materially accurate.

J Flynn
Chair of Governors

Date: 13" December 2022
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation

The members of the Corporation are required to present audited financial statements for each financial year.

Within the terms and conditions of the College’s Grant Funding Agreements and contracts with the ESFA and
ather relevant funding bodies, the Corporation, through its Accounting Officer, is required to prepare financial
statements for each financial year in accordance with the 2019 Stotement of Recommended Proctice —
Accounting for Further and Higher Education and with the College Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by
the ESFA, and which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the College and the result for that year.

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is required to:
# select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently
s  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

# state whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements

o assess the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern, noting the key supparting assumptions,
gualifications or mitigating actions as appropriate; and

« prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to assume that the
College will continue in operation.

The Corporation is also required to prepare a Strategic Report which describes what it is trying to do and how it
is going about it, Including information about the legal and administrative status of the College.

The Corporation is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy, at any time, the financial position of the College, and which enable it to ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with the relevant legislation of incorporation and other relevant
accounting standards. It is responsible for taking steps that are reasonably open to it to safeguard the assets of
the College and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The maintenance and integrity of the College website is the responsibility of the Corporation of the College; the
work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors
accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were
initially presented on the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Members of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied for the
purposes intended by Parliament and that the financial transactions conform to the authorities that govern
them. In addition, they are responsible for ensuring that funds from the ESFA are used only in accordance with
the Grant Funding Agreements and contracts with the ESFA and any other conditions that may be prescribed
from time to time. Members of the Corporation must ensure that there are appropriate financial and
management controls in place in order to safeguard public and other funds and to ensure they are used properly.
In addition, members of the Corporation are responsible for securing economical, efficient and effective
management of the College's resources and expenditure, so that the benefits that should be derived from the
application of public funds from the ESFA are not put at risk.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 13 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

J. Flynn
Chair
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Independent auditor’s report to the Corporation of Salford City College for the
year ended 31 July 2022

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Salford City College (the 'College’) for the year ended 31 July 2022
which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Reserves, the Balance
Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

= give a true and fair view of the state of the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2022, and of its income and
expenditure, gains and losses and changes in reserves, and cash flows for the year then ended;

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

*  have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further
and Higher Education; and

« meet the requirements of the Accounts Direction issued by the Office for Students (‘the OfS Accounts
Direction).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {*15As (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our repart. We are independent of the College in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinian.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Corporation’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the College's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Corporation with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report and Financial Statements, ather
than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, The Corporation is responsible for the other
information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
25



Matters on which we are reguired to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Post 16 Audit Code of
Practice issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

# the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Regulatory Advice 5:
Accounts Direction issued by the Office for Students requires us to report to you if, in our opinion;
* where applicable, funds from whatever source administered by the provider for specific purposes have
not been properly applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation; or
» where applicable, funds provided by the Of5, UK Research and Innovation [including Research England),
the Education and Skills Funding Agency and the Department for Education have not been applied in
accordance with the relevant terms and conditions; ar
* the requirements of the Of5's accounts direction have not been met; or
+ the provider's grant and fee income, as disclosed in the note to the accounts, has been materially
misstated; or
o the College's expenditure on access and participation activities for the financial year has been materially
misstated

Responsibilities of the Corporation

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation, the Corporation
is responsible for the preparation of financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the Corporation determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is responsible for assessing the College’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Corporation either intend to liguidate the College or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsihilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and with 1SAs (UK). Those standards require us to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors,

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1545 (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,

Misstatemnents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstaterments in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The specific procedures for this engagement and the extent to which these are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:
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Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities including fraud

We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and then design and perform audit procedures response to those risks, including obtaining audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

In identifying and assessing the risks or material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud and
non-compliance with laws and regulations we considered the following;
* The nature of the College, the environment in which it operates and the control procedures
implemented by management and the Corporation; and
*  Dur enguiries of management and the Corporation about their identification and assessment of the
risks of irregularities.

Based on our understanding of the College and the sector we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance
with laws and regulations related to, but were not limited to;
*  Regulations and legislation pertinent to the College's operations;
* Compliance with the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice 2021 to 2022;
*  Compliance with the requirements of the Department for Education, Education & 5kills Funding Agency
and the Office for Students; and
* Compliance with the requirements of the Office for Standards in Education

We considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material impact on the financial statements.
We also considered those laws and regulations which have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial
statements, such as the Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further and Higher Education
2019 and the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice 2021 to 2022,

We evaluated management and trustees’ incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the
financial staterments (including the risk of management override of controls), and determined that the principal
risks were related to;

#  Posting inappropriate journal entries

Audit response to the risks identified;

Our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following;

*  Gaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the College and the
sactor in which it operates;

*+  Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with provisions of refevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the
financial statements;

= Enquiring of management, the audit committee, the internal auditors and legal advisors concerning
actual and potential litigation and claims;

= Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and
reviewing correspondence with the Department for Education, Education & Skills Funding Agency, the
Office for Students and the Office for Standards in Education; and

* In addressing the risk of fraud as a result of management override of controls, testing the
appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; evaluating rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team
members, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations
throughout the audit.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This
risk increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud invohees
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation,
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial

Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Corporation, as a body, in accordance with the Funding Agreement published
by Education and Skills Funding Agency and our engagement letter,

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation, as a body, those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Corporation, as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
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Wylie & Bisset (Audit) Limited
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor

168 Bath Street

Glasgow

G2 4TP

Date: 13" December 2022
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Reporting accountant’s assurance report on regularity

To:
The Corporation of Salford City College and the Secretary of 5tate for Education acting through the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 22nd September 2021 and further to the
requirements and conditions of funding in the ESFA's grant funding agreements and contracts, or those of any
ather public funder, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether anything
has come to our attention that would suggest, in all material respects, the expenditure disbursed and income
received by Salford City College during the period 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 have not been applied to the
purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern
them,

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice (the Code) issued by the
ESFA and in any relevant conditions of funding concerning adult education notified by a relevant funder,

This report is made solely to the corporation of Salford City College and the ESFA in accordance with the terms
of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the corporation of Salford
City College and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept, or assume, responsibility to anyone other than the corporation
of Salford City College and the ESFA for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed,

Respective responsibilities of Salford City College and the reporting accountant

The corporation of Salford City College is responsible, under the requirements of the Further & Higher Education
Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed,
and income received, are applied for the purposes intended by Parliament, and the financial transactions
conform to the authorities that govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Code. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our
work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure dishursed and income received, during the period
1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited
assurance engagement as defined in that framework.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity and propriety.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

Cur engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of the corporation’s
income and expenditure,

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
# Documenting the framework of authorities which govern the activities of the College;

o  Undertaking a risk assessment based on our understanding of the general control environment and any
weaknesses in internal controls identified by our audit of the financial statements;
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=  Reviewing the self-assessment questionnaire which supports the representations included in the Chair
of Governors and Accounting Officer’s statement on regularity, propriety and compliance with the
framework of autharities;

#  Testing transactions with related parties;

« Confirming through enquiry and sample testing that the College has complied with its procurement
policies and that these policies comply with delegated authorities; and

* Reviewing any evidence of impropriety resulting from our work and determining whether it was
significant enough to be referred to in our regularity report.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects, the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament, and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
that govern them.
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Wylie & Bisset (Audit) Limited
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

168 Bath Street

Glasgow

G2 4TP

Date: 13" December 2022
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Salford City College
Statement of Comprehensive Income

INCOME

Funding body grants

Tuition fees and education contracts
Other grants and contracts

Other income

Investment income

Donations and Endowments

Total income

EXPENDITURE

Staff costs

Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Interest and other finance costs
Total expenditure

(Deficit) / Surplus before other gains, losses and tax
(Loss) / Gain on disposal of assets

(Deficit) f Surplus before tax

Taxation

(Deficit) f Surplus for the year

Actuarial gain in respect of pension schemes

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Represented by:
Restricted Comprehensive Income
Unrestricted Comprehensive Income

Notes

All itemns of income and expenditure relate to continuing activities.

The notes on pages 35 to 51 form part of these financial statements.
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Year ended 31 July
2022
£000

36,418
2,166
945
1,231

72

40,832

28,693
11,421
2,803
676

43,593

(2,761)

(2,761)

(2,761)

29,405

26,644

26,644

26,644

2021
£'000

34,607
2,439
923
67

255
38,792

25,831
9,773
3,186

658

39,448

(656)

(656])

(656)

1,723

1,067

1,067
1,067



Salford City College
Statement of Changes in Reserves

Balance at 1 August 2020

Surplus / (deficit) from the income and expenditure account

Other comprehensive income

Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserves
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 July 2021

Surplus / (deficit) from the income and expenditure account

Other comprehensive income

Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserves

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 July 2022

The notes on pages 35 to 51 form part of these financial statements.
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Income and Revaluation Total
Expenditure reserve
account
£'000 £'000 £'000
(1,461) 574 (BE7)
(B56) - (656)
1,723 - 1,723
32 132) -
1,099 [32) 1,067
(362} 542 180
{2,761) (2,761)
29,405 29,405
32 [32)
26,677 (32) 26,644
26,314 510 26,824




Salford City College
Balance Sheet as at 31 July 2022

Non current assets
Tangible fixed assets
Investments

Current assets
Stocks
Trade and ather receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets / (liabilities)
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions
Defined benefit obligations
Other provisions
Total net assets / (liabilities)
Unrestricted Reserves
Income and expenditure account
Revaluation reserve

Total unrestricted reserves

Total reserves

Motes 2022 2021
£'000 £'000
12 35,013 36,574
13 - -
35,013 36,574
48 79
14 944 769
19 10,223 9,065
11,215 9,914

15 (5,935 (5,646]
5,280 4,267

40,293 40,841

16 {13,277 |14,252|
18 . (26,181
18 (192 {229
26,824 180

26,314 (362!

510 5432
26,824 180
26,824 180

The financial statements on pages 35 to 51 were approved and authorised for issue by the Corporation on 13 December 2022 and

were signed on its behalf on that date by:

). Flynn
Chair

The notes on pages 35 to 51 form part of these financial statements.
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Salford City College
Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flow from operating activities

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year

Adjustment for non-cash items

Depreciation

(Increase) / decrease in stocks

(Increase) / decrease in debhtors

Increase / (decrease) in creditors due within one year
Increase / (decrease) in creditors due after one year
Increase [ (decrease) in provisions

Pensions costs less contributions payable
Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Investment income

Interest payable

Net cash flow from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income

Payments made to acquire fixed assets
Net cash flow from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid

Repayments of amounts borrowed

MNet cash flow from financing activities

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The notes on pages 35 to 51 form part of these financial statements.
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MNotes

19

19

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
(2,761} (656)
2,803 3,186
31 {18)
{175} (115)
266 1,391
(562) 848
(38) (2
3,224 2,328

- (1)

253 286
3,043 7,241

- 1
{1,204} {1,744)
{1,204) (1,743)
(253} (286)
(428} (314)
(681) (B00)
1,158 4,898
9,065 4,167
10,223 9,065



Salford City College Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 July 2022

Notes to the Accounts
1. Accounting policies

Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice:
Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 (the 2019 FE HE S50RP), the College Accounts Direction for
2021 to 2022, and in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 102 — “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of lreland” (FRS 102). The College is a public benefit entity and
has therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102,

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the College's accounting policies.

Basis of accounting
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.

Basis of consolidation

The College had one subsidiary company, Edlobs Limited, which was incorporated on 6 May 2011. Edlobs
Limited has not traded during the yvear and the prior year. The College has elected not to prepare consolidated
financial statements on the basis that EdJobs was dissolved on 17 November 2020, and the results of the
subsidiary at 31 July 2021 were immaterial to the Group.

In accordance with FRS 102, the activities of the student union have not been consolidated because the College
does not control those activities.

Going concern

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance
are set out in the Annual Report of the Corporation. The financial position of the College, its cashflow, liquidity
and borrowings are presented in the Financial Statements and accompanying Motes. The financial statements
are prepared on a going concern basis notwithstanding that the College has reported a deficit of £2,761,000 for
the year to 31 July 2022 (2021: £656,000), net cash inflow of £1,158,000 (2021: inflow of £4 898,000) and at 31
luly 2022 has net assets of £26,824,000 (2021: net assets of £180,000).

Consideration has been given to the current cost of living crisis and the potential effects on the financial position.
The College receives the majority of its income from UK government through recurrent funding, which has been
confirmed for 2022-23, and fully expects funding to continue beyond this coming year. The College is also due
to benefit from the increased national funding rate from August 2022, After significantly increased enrolment
levels in 2020-21, followed by a year of consolidation in 2021-22, current enrolments for the 2022-23 academic
year are on target, and future year growth is anticipated due to the progression of the College and the modest
demographic changes due over the next five years.

The College currently has £5.784m of secured loans outstanding with bankers. The College has no overdraft
facility, but does have £10.223m cash available as at July 2022. The College had two bank loan facilities, and the
terms of the existing agreements are, at 31 July 2022:

i. There is a £2,500,000 secured loan at a variable rate of 1.9% over base rate repayable over five years,
but with a ten-year payment profile, by quarterly instalments falling due between June 2021 and March
2026, During the year the College successfully requested improved loan covenant arrangements on
the variable loan, improving on temporary arrangements secured in the prior year. The balance
putstanding was £2,221,000.
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Salford City College Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 July 2022

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

Going concern (continued)

ii. There is also a £5,375,000 secured loan at a fixed rate of 5.367% for the full 25-year term of the loan,
repayable by quarterly instalments falling due between August 2009 and May 2034. The College
renegotiated a contract variation in year, to reflect the allocation of security to the bank, as well as an
updated set of covenants. The balance outstanding was £3,563,000.

The Corporation has prepared cash flow forecasts for a period of 12 months from the date of approval of these
financial statements. After reviewing these forecasts, the Corporation is of the opinion that, taking account of
potential downsides and mitigations, including the potential ongoing impact of COVID-19, the College will have
sufficient funds to meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of 12 months from the date of approval of
the financial staternents (the going concern assessment period).

The College’s forecasts and financial projections indicate that it will be able to operate within the terms of its
existing facilities and respective covenant requirements for the foreseeable future.

Accordingly, the College has a reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future, and for at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial
statements, and for this reason will continue to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of its Financial
Statements.

Recognition of income
Revenue grant funding

Government revenue grants include funding body recurrent grants and other grants, and are accounted for
under the accrual model as permitted by FRS 102, Funding body recurrent grants are measured in line with best
estimates for the period of what is receivable and depend on the particular income stream involved, The final
grant income is normally determined with the conclusion of the year end reconciliation process with the funding
body following the year end, and the results of any funding audits. 16-18 funding is not subject to reconciliation
and is therefore not subject to contract adjustments,

The recurrent grant from OfS represents the funding allocations attributable to the current financial year and is
credited direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Where part of a government grant is deferred, the deferred element is recognised as deferred income within
creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and creditors due after more than one year as
appropriate.

Grants from non-government sources are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the income and
performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions
being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the Balance Sheet and released to income as the
conditions are met.

Capital grant funding

Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income over the expected
useful life of the asset, under the accrual model as permitted by FRS 102. Other, non-governmental, capital
grants are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related
conditions being met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions being met is recognised
as deferred income within creditors on the Balance Sheet and released to income as conditions are met.

Fee income

Income from tuition fees is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and is recognised in the
period for which it is received.
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Recognition of income (continued)
Investment income

All income from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure account in the period in which it
is earned on a receivable basis,

Agency arrangements

The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain discretionary support funds, Related
payments received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the
income and expenditure of the College where the College is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic
benefit related to the transaction.

Accounting for post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits to employees of the College are principally provided by the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme (TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are defined benefit plans, which are
externally funded, and contracted out of the State Second Pension.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees’ working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries
on the basis of valuations using a prospective benefit method.

The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit
accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution plan and the contributions recognised as an
expense in the income statement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Greater Manchester Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS liabilities are
measured using the projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high-quality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to the operating surplus/|deficit)
are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred.

Met interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate
used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and
the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in interest and other finance costs.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in actuarial gains and losses.

Short term Employment benefits

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised as an
expense in the year in which the employees render service to the College. Any unused benefits are accrued and
measured as the additional amount the College expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

Enhanced pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced ongoing pension to a former member of staff is paid by the College annually.
An estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the ongoing pension of a former member of
staff is charged in full to the College’s income in the year that the member of staff retires. In subsequent years
a charge is made to provisions in the balance sheet using the enhanced pension spreadsheet provided by the
funding bodies.
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Non-current assets — Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

Land and buildings

Land and buildings inherited from the Local Education Authority (LEA) are stated in the balance sheet at
valuation on the basis of depreciated replacement cost. Building improvements made since incorporation are
included in the balance sheet at cost. Freehold land is not depreciated as it considered to have an infinite useful
life. In compliance with relevant accounting standards, the buildings inherited from the local authority are
depreciated over the remainder of their useful economic life. Freehold buildings are depreciated over their
expected useful economic life to the College of 50 years.

Capitalised expenditure on buildings since incorporation is classified as property improvements. Property
improvements are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful economic life to the College of
between 10 and 50 years.

Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and depreciated as
above. The related grants are credited to a deferred income account within creditors, and are released to the
income and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related asset on a basis consistent
with the depreciation policy. The deferred income is allocated between creditors due within one year and
creditors due after more than one year.

Finance costs, which are directly attributable to the construction of land and buildings, are not capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable,

On adoption of FRS 102, the College followed the transitional provision to retain the book value of land and
buildings, which were revalued in 1993, as deemed cost but not to adopt a policy of revaluations of these
properties in the future.

Assets under construction

Assets under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ certificates and other
direct costs, incurred to 31 July. They are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

Subsequent expenditure on fixed assets

Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets after initial purchase, it is charged to the
income and expenditure in the period it is incurred, unless it meets one of the criteria detailed below, in which
case it is capitalised and depreciated on the relevant basis.

Equipment

Equipment costing less than £1,000 per individual item is recognised as revenue expenditure in the year of
acquisition, unless it is of significant operating value to the College in which case the asset is recorded in the
College's asset register and depreciated over its useful economic life. All equipment with a cost in excess of
£1,000 is capitalised at cost.

Capitalised equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its useful economic life as follows:

s General and technical equipment — between 5 and 10 years
= Motor vehicles — between 5 and 10 years

s Computer equipment = 5 years

*  Fixtures and fittings — between 5 and 10 years.
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Non-current assets — Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Where equipment is acquired with the aid of specific grants, it is capitalised and depreciated in accordance with
the above policy, with the related grant being credited to a deferred capital grant account and released to the
income and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related equipment.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred.

Leased assets

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Any lease premiums or incentives relating to leases signed after 1
August 2014 are spread over the minimum lease term. The College has taken advantage of the transitional
exemptions in FRS 102 and has retained the policy of spreading lease premiums and incentives to the date of
the first market rent review for leases signed before 1st August 2014,

Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership of an asset
are treated as finance leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised initially at the fair value of the leased asset {or, if lower, the
present value of minimum lease payments) at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the balance sheet as an obligation under finance leases. Assets held under finance leases are
included in tangible fixed assets and depreciated and assessed for impairment losses in the same way as owned
assets.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charges are allocated over the period of the lease in proportion to the capital element
outstanding.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment in the individual financial statements.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of their cost {(using the first in first out method) and net realisable value, being
selling price less costs to complete and sell. Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving and
defective stocks.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are repayable on demand
if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liguid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
with insignificant risk of change in value. An investment gualifies as a cash equivalent when it has maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition.
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Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument’s contractual
obligations, rather than the financial instrument’s legal form.

All loans, investments and short-term deposits held by the College are classified as basic financial instruments
in accordance with FRS 102. These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction price less any transaction
costs (historical cost). FRS 102 requires that basis financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, howewver the College has calculated that the difference between the historical cost and amortised cost basis
is not material and so these financial instruments are stated on the Balance Sheet at historical cost. Loans and
investments that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted.

Taxation

The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule & Finance Act 2010 and therefore it
meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the College is
potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by
sections 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992,
to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

The Caollege is partially exemnpt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover around 1% of the VAT
charged on its inputs. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs and added to the cost
of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the inputs themselves are tangible fixed assets by nature.

The College’s subsidiary company, dissolved on 17" November 2020, was subject to corporation tax and VAT in
the same way as any commercial organisation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when:

e the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event
* jtis probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation, and
» areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the
obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as a finance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period it arises.

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the College. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but
either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in the Notes to the financial
statements.

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Judgements in applying accounting policies
In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements:

« Determine whether leases entered into by the College either as a lessor or a lessee are operating or
finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease by lease basis.

s Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the College’s tangible assets. Factors taken into
consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected future financial
performance of the asset.
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Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty

Tangible fixed ossets

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their useful lives taking into
account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed
annuzlly and may vary depending on a number of factors. In reassessing asset lives, factors such as
technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual value
assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and
projected disposal values,

Local Government Pension S5cheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability/asset depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in Mote 23, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability/asset. The actuary has used a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest
full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 to value the pensions liability at 31 July 2022, Any
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation
would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability/asset.
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The members of the Corporation other than the Accounting Officer and the staff member did nof recesse oy payment droe the institubcn obher than the resmbursement of Sravel and
subrisbived fepirsed ncumed in The coune al thai dutie.
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9 Oither cperating experaes

a0y e
E000 T
Tanching covty L 2014
e s g £t 5347 4,327
Fremies costy &0487 3432
Todal 11421 8773
Oithar cperating experaes include: 2022 W21
=] (]

Buditors’ remuner ation:
Financial stalements pudit * m 35
Otker services provided by Frandisl slataments suddar ** 3 2
waemal audit fees 15 13
SabCordracting Aasurance Repart 1 i
Paymmants to Subcontrachor 736 1.142
Dupreciation *** 1303 3,136
Hire oF muiets peder cpsrating lease: 11 £33

*  This amount includes £3,500 for the Funding Audit. in sddton, & credi of 600 m relation fo the 3020-21 funding i inc kaded,

=*  Faesincuimed in relation oo tha Accass B Paricipation Audx and tha Taschers' Panskon Audt

mEe pmhpdes £12,000 [2020-21: £255%} in respect of the wrrestricted donation of laptops and IPads from the DFE, which have been depreciated in full inoyear [ses Note 7).
Sa Access and participation spending

CHE regjistered colepes with sooess and purticipetion plans are reguared to disclose spendieg n up o dour cebegones n s sepeeate nale;

0% W21

E E

- Acdmis imves et 41367 SREN

= Firantial suppon e suedants 11056 17,150

- Dizabilty Support any 3. oo

- Mesearch srd evabarbgn [refating b access snd paficpabon) %623 AT AN
Judpemesis and Avsumplions

Berwis ard s ti hver bisiery fhad i ulating bo i (i puarts oF thie plan (rraileble on W Colape's wibsbs al dafon acuk 3 and husn been rivinwead by masigsmant

ak part of e anrual bud et rivies, Thie review enbared that o spered is in Ene with e spand and that i s ckarly be dentified et fose studsnts Tiding the Meslsupgant hive bien in raoeist ol
that. The b of The spend wil dhwags be at buted 10 the activitkes 1o Peach poTential STOENTS 0 5 pEOIT our e gagement with thaem,

Tha criwty s thess cateperie am vy divinct. Al sseniy, tmbar ssiony, mackstng, puticatiom and wwkions with B8 studem wppart qaff seetn emhanos swa e of counes i shudech fom

endamapreentief grouzs and dasied s “Accns | ", Db b thie parrdern i e hinss had fomer %o cosd et in parios aciif o support wediming secei 1o Hher Edusation and e
ikl fecused 0f wirtual sissons and shar gremetinnal actisilih. AdSiDonal T R ako been devolid 1o the masagemnant of M acth i [0 suspoet the AFP and 0o e dnd evaliang tha perlofmasce
and success of such acthiies,

A menies paid directiy to yhidents, mich s Buranes or one alf kardship paymencs ars dicectty related i the “lirancial ssppon” crtegery. Any fnancid mipgart to dissbled shudenis. or aduismests made i
1ha Lnreeruty Camire, or learning support. ooty wisld be disectiy attrizutshls to “wppart for daahied wadenb® and Sinably “resarch end salertion” cossowll Be sttibuted o the tme spent by & rasge of
rbin iggarrar® hose n reviiain g U plan and seibsatien of G ffestmnari.

Siaf costs are apportionsd on the hesof 1% of fe botal gross pog for seversl stat, and t=e ull cos for the HE snd Access Supgart Cifices, This s cordemed By bre manpgen aed amior managens n lae sch
thair role and remponuhil R o Bae APF,

A0 irtiract pargable and sthar financs costs

20z 21
o0 g
O bank koans, overdratts and other loans 53 288
0 P Bases
ek interest on defined pension labibty {Mote 73) 423 L]
Toual Gi3 8
11 Tamathsn

Thar srvirmbsart die not bekeve that the Cofloge wis Rable for ary coporation Lie arking cul of it acivties duting aither war

F
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12 Tanpkle Hioed mmets

Frouhobd Land Progarty Fiatames & Ejuigetrind. Acias i thie Toaal
and Bulidngs Improwements Fittings course of
canstructian
£7000 £'0D0 £7000 i) £7000 £7000

Cost or valuabion
At 1 At 1031 S6.7 18,517 L545 Lo a GORET

#5515 undar constraction fransfarred - . . | 1L} .

Additions. 580 120 £33 3 124z

Depoiak - - - - -

Disposaks = fully dupreciatod assets .
A 3 July 2022 36,124 19,007 1,665 4637 ] 3,120
Depreciation
AE1 Aupes 2021 12310 L BiF EL] 3347 = 13

Chissgin fee tha ynar 754 L4351 168 450 . 1an3

Cisposaks

Depoaak —fulby deprecated sssets . ] = ‘
A 30 July 2022 12,564 9,853 306 3,737 . 17,116
Hee2 book value at 31 Ry 2022 23,760 9,638 758 =1 ] 35,013
Wt book walue at 31 Juky 2021 14514 10, 483 a8 Ten a 35574
Orther tangiode fiwed sssens inherited from the Local Education Authorty 7 inoorporatkon have been valued by the College on o depredated replacement cost basts with the assk of independant p cal advice.
Thare are o assets heid under finance keases

13 Man-curmint Skl
20z w2l
-] =]

¥ in ¥ COMp
Toaal 5

Tha Collage tawessd 1005 of Th issued ondinary £1 dharis of Edisbn Lisited, & comgany interparated in Englind and Wakis Filabn Lisited was ineongaated on B Mey 2011, the priccopal
Acthity beng apprenticeship raking. E4iobs Umked eporisnced no trading during the year and the Colkge made no payments i tha year [3020-21: oost of EE for a 1iing Teel. As sthe
compary kad not traded for some years, on applcaton was made to Companies Mouse to desohe the commpany. Tha compeery wes dissobed on 17 Mosermber 2020 and p 2=t of accoargs for
thi puirisd phding 17 Neweiber T00 e solbesittod 1o HERBC in Aprd 7021,

14 Trade and othar recohrabls
0z Wzl
e (g
amauits faling dud within ona yoar:
Trade recevables n 113
Rt uarty delstars [Mote 24] = a
Prepayments and accrued Income 551 353
Amounts cwed by B LSER a7 58
Toral 344 TES
15 Credibors: amounts falling due wiitin one year
LS w31
EDO0 £
Bank loons (Woqe 17} 418 434
Payraints recivnd B advianoe i) Gk H]
Trasde payanies Ted e
Hher taxabaon ond socal security S00 436
Arrruak wnd delarned oo 1568 1,774
Hiodiday pay socraal 51 T
Deferred moceme - povermmant capital grants (558 12
Fiuged ansit crediter 319 Ia
{nher credeon 478 43L
Amounts owed o the E5FA 40 400
Toeal 5335 5645
16 Credibors: mmounts falling due after ong year
nzz 071
£7000 (y i)
Bank lopns (Rcae 17) 06 Ler) !
Dalarmid incoes ~ poesmment capital grants At BT
Tozal 13277 14332
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Motes to the Accounts [continued)

17 Maveivy of ditn
fal Bank luans
Bank lpans are repavable as fobiows:
In one year or s
Betwaen cre s ban years
Birtwasizn T i s yisiers

In #he years or mone

Tanal

e in guarter by inatal

AL 3 July W02, the Cofligge had twe bank kan Taclitie, wach

nzz Fl
£000 £000

a8 434

435 452
1583 2704
1,348 2518
5,784 6212

i} & EZ-5m secured loan 1 a variahlke intenest rate of Base Rate plus 1.9%. The loan & for fve wears from March 2021, with a 10-year payment profle. This loan was refinanced

durning 20:20-21,

[ & ES. 375 secured Lo al & Feard rate of 53ET% The kaan B regayalile cuer 35 yars from Sy 2009 1o May 2034,

b} Financa kasis
The Coliege doss not have any France leise ablgatioes

18 Provisions

At fupet 21

Experaivusna in the period
additions i period

Ar 31 July 2022

Defined Eenafit Enhanced Tatal
£'000 E000 f]
16,141 FFL] 264G
11,455 L7} 11423}
124,71%) |19} |22.738)
. 192 152

Dafined banedit obigations refato 1o tha Raditics undor the Colage's membarchip of tha Local Govarrewnt Fension Schime. Further detals s ghon in Mot 23.

The enhanced pensian provisian relates b the cost of taffwho hive akescy feft the Colleps's ermioy and comm@ments for reargssisation costy from which the College cannaol reasonaby
wiithdras at the balince sheat date. This prosiskes has Ben recaiodated n accordance with putance issued by the fumsng bodies.

Thar grrincipal assurmetions far this calidation an:

Price mfation
Do sl

19 Cash sndd cash equivalents
Cash pnd cash oqavalerds
Bank cwirdrafl
Total

20 Capitad commitments

Cowrerebments condracted for at 31 July

21 Lesse obligations

At 31 Juby the College had minimum lease paymenss ander non-cancelatée operating kases as folows:

Future minimum lsase paymants dus:

Lamdl and beiidings
Mot later than g year
Lartuy chirs i yisar mot Ritar Thin Fase yaan
Larber tham five years

Onhar

Mot later than one year
Later thar one year not Inter Ban five years
Lartut Chie v yoars

Testail leasi payrmmnty dus

3 Caningrecies

2022 W21

Lin% ZHS%

3.50% 1e0%

AL 1 August 2021 Caih e A1 31 July p022
E£'DDD £7000 E000
ERUG 158 i EE]
fioes 1AM e
02r w021

E000 EG
ki 145

20TF w31

ER0n Ed0

4496 4

1702 1243

1z 401 12,757

14539 15,133

EE] 1nd

i 132

61 115

1470 15,369

The Supreme Courd recently heard 3 case refating bo the holday pay term-time orly skafl with non-standard hours s~ordd receree. The Court judged in fowour of the appelsst which means
thar sl Cofligas ey Ao ta Fecaboudate Bafidey gay for stalf in smilar cromstaness. Dus 1o th recesey of the cice s sl puidance boing clarified (hans is a0l uheertainty as 1 the

wniie of any liabifty and it has not been praciical to estmate the potential Fabfty at this stage [2020-21: Aooe).

47
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23 Defined benedit obligations:

The Colege’s employees bokong 10 Two priscipal postamploymie benalit placs: the Teachars Persion Schemo England and Wiales (TPS] for academic and rofatsd staft; and tho Greater
Mancheier Lol Governement Pension Scheme [LGPS] for non-teaching stafl, which s managed by Tameside Council Both are mudt-employer defined-benefs plans,

The pension costs pre assessed in sccordance with the advice of independent oealfied sctuanes. Tre lakesd formal aciupnn! valuation of Bre TFS wes 31 8arch 2019, and of the LGPS was 31

March 2019
Toaal pension codt for tha year 0% e
ET00 'm0
Taachers' Pansion Schesvee conbrbutions paid 1556 24EL
Local Gonsnmant Pern Schame;
Contributions paid 14e8 1312
FES 102 | 28] charge 783 1,956
Charpe 1o the Stafement of Compreherave Incame 4249 3178
Enhanced pension charge o Sptement of Compre hermses Income (F111 ]
Tozal Penslon Cast lor Year within stafl cosis 6337 5745
At A1 Juby 2022, there wies EATAR cudstanding employer’s comirbutions due to the tan schemes [E30%k 78% and £105k GMPF] which were both paid oser m fusgust 2027 [2020-21: £E284k TPS
and E150k GMPF|,
Teachers” Pension Scheme
The Tenchers' Prngian Stheme [TPS) v 2 stabstory, contritntory, defined benafit schame, goaemad by the Teschers' Peniian Schemes Regulstions 2014, These ragidations apply te teachens in
schonok;, colkiges and sther educatioeal 5. Mambership s tic tar teackars and kecturars at ebgible instrutions. Teachers and kcturars ane @bl 1o opt out of B TFS.

Tha TPS is an unfundad schems and members confribiie on @ ‘pay at you go° Basis = thase contributions, @iong with thoso made by employars, am craditod T tha Exchaguar undar
arrangements poeemed by the sbose Act. Retirement and cther persion berefés are pakd by public furss provided by Pardiamant

Wiy She definiions set cub in FRS 302 {26 21}, the 785 iy o mulb-emplrger pemocn plan,. The College is wnakle B identify it share ol the under g sszats and Gatslities of the plin.

Aceordingly, the College has token advantage of the seemption in FAS 102 and hes sccounted for s contributions bo the scheme as # it were a defined-cordrbution plen. The College kas et
ol adeveie U el vt o mvadabibe on the plan and the implieatiees foe te Cologe in termi of the anticipated cotrbution fais.

The walgation of the 0% i3 carvied out = lime with regulations made under e Publc Serace Pension Act 3013, Walustions credit the teschers’ pension atoount with o real rote of rebern
assurning furds are vested in notlana that produce that sl rate of Feduin.

The katest actusrial mevies af the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2019 The valustion repoet was publshed by the Oepartment tar Education (the Depsrtmens| in Agnil 2019,

The waluation reported total scheme Sabidities (pensions curently in pay and the d cost ot fubure beratits] dor serdce bo the effectve dote of £218,100 mlisn, and rotional
anyat (esbrmated Tubure contrBnitions Sapether with the nationel e 1y held a8 the weluation dabe) of £196,100 milicn gaing 2 nations! peit service defict of £22 000 million

A a st of the valuation, nine emnployer costrbution rates wire sl al 33635 of pansianable pay lineluding the admisstoaton by of 0.08%) from Seprembar 2019 nwards {eompaned 1
15.48% duning 201E-13|. The Degartment has agreed to pay a teacker pension emploger contrbutaon grant to ooser the additional tosts durieg the 202122 academic year.

B lul copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be foand on the Teachers' Pension Scheme website.

Tha gemdinn easts pad 16 TP i e yesd enousted to £2,505 541 | 2030-F1: E7.465,507)

FRS 102 |28]

Ut thie dizfinfions set aut In FRS 102 {28 11}, the TRS is 2 muli-employer persion plan. The College |5 unable to identify its share of the underbying assets and Radd ities of the plan.

Agcordirgly, e Collig hat Taken advantage of e geersption in FAS 102 and his scountind Tor s costribaaticen 0o the schama ag # (L ware a definad-cortribution plam. The Collign bas 501
out Jbcwe e information avalablke on the plan and the implications for the Colege in tenms of the anticipaaed coraribution rates.
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23 Defined benedit obligations [continued|

Local Government Fenslon Scheme

Tha LGRS i @ loradad difivad -Banalit plic, with et Baldd in Funes admi il By T di Eaal A ity T Dl o il ik Toer Ghis yaar anded 31 July 2022 win
£1,95£,059 of which employer's contributions ttalked £1,487,510 and employees’ coniributions oralied E466,583. The agraed contrisation rates for fusure vears m 20.79% for emplovers,
and range from % 59% ko 12, 9% for employess. depending on sslary according to o natonal scale

Primscipal Bctuardal Assumpbices

Tree Tellorwing formaton i based upon a full actuanal valuation of the fund & at 31 March 2009 updated to 31 July 2020 by a qualfied inde perdent actuary, Hymass Aobanson

LLF;

Ax E1 duly 1023 A1 31 July P02l
Raie of increase in safanes 1.50% 3E0%
Fufure pemicns ncreases 175% ras
Disconand st Tor st Sabeliies 350% 1e0M
IrrHation assumption [CPI] L75% 135%
Commutaton of pereons bo lump sers L5 00% 00

The current mortality assumptions include sufficent akiowance for future improvements in momadty rates. The assumed [Be espectations on retirement age 53 are:

At 31 huly 7022 At 31 July 2021
Rehnng doday
Moy prick s
Females 3.2 33
Meding in 30 yeors
LA a8 1.9
Females %1 %3
Tre= Coliega's share of the sty in the pfan at the balance sheat dabe and bhe expected rates of rebom were:
Fair ¥ahue Fair value
at 1 July 2023 at 51 July 2000
E'DOD E000
Ecprtims 18,57 ELE
Bands 7,338 B, 147
Progerty 5,078 3159
Cosh .63 4,45
Taostal fade waluie of plan assets SE,&837 54,311
Wisghbed avarage expicled long Lean rate of setum 354 1.6%
Actua| mbum on plin sxiety 1,058 0T
The ameunt included in the Balancs shest in mypect of the defined becefs pensian plan and sckanced pension Benefits s as follows:
Mz Wzl
=] (g
Fair value of plas agses 56427 58,311
Prasant valie of plan Eabilbies {56427} |80 453}
et pensions {lability] | asset L] {26,181}
Asnnuis i the Sta i of Comprefensive Incomse In respect of the plan are as tollows:
o0z FL
faili] (-]
Amnounts included in stafl cons
Current servce cost 440 310
Pt s eerid 3 -
Tatal 4249 3183
Ammounts includied in istares pagabile
Hes mterest on defined pension Astl ity 441} [Erri]
faa1) (512}
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23 Dafiraad benedit abligathees [cetinued]

" il e ot G rileatiog ricimsir FliF i
ET000 EDO
Return oo pension plic assets akd EAE R
Edpericacs gains [/ [lasses] ariing on defined bendi abigatens 173y 1017
Changes in assumptions underying the present walue of plon liskilRies 23,084 |7.837)
Asnounl grtised i Othisr Comprefandve Incoms 5405 1723
Macesement in net detined benefit {lability] [ ssset dwring the year 022 2021
[ (-]
Het defmed (Babiity] f asset in scheme at 1 Aupss {26181} |25.5T8)
Moyemant in the year:
Cursant sersios cost 246} 13,283}
Employer coniritarions 1466 1327
Pacd service cavhy (K1 -
Mot incorast an the defined liakiliny 441} 372y
Actuanial pain or loss 29405 173
Mt difined bisafin assetf|listdity) a1 31 July - {26,181}
Azzet and Linbity Recondllation mzz Wzl
oot (g
Changes i this presen value of Safised benelit obligatioes
Giedined bunefit chligations at start of pesiod BOAG2 9546
Curmant serios cost 4248 3,133
Imberest cost 1315 5
Cantributinns &y Scheme parti panty ASEH 411
Expericacs |gains) and lasses o delingd banedi obipations 73 {Loa3y
Changes in financal assumphons j2a.oaa) 7Ean
Extimated banedits paid {1LA64} {L0sa)
Pasd Sarvics oots E]
Curindments and settlemanty
Difivvind Banarlit elligations at and of pesiod 56,427 B0.432

Changes i fair walue of plan assets

FliF e

ET000 EDO
Fair walue of plas avsets 1 start of period 54,311 4.3
Riuirn o plas assess 484 B2
Inberess om plan assets aa i)
Employer cantritnrdiony 1466 1.7
Contributions by Schamo panicisants 438 411
Extimated benefits paid §1.16d) {10
Fair valus of plan aisets o1 end of pariod 56,427 Sd 351

These accounts shoaw 3 paat service cost of E230 millios in respect of the 8cCloud [ Sergeant judgment which nded that the frarsibonal protection for some members of publc sensice
scherrey mplemended when they ware ref; d ¢ lapge dits This preveisice is just yrider 1% cf Ehe total yechame liabiley s ot 51 iy 2030, The cakulation of sdpetment
10 s service costs, £7 billion, arsing from the cutcome of the Court of Aspeal jud gt is Based on a sumber of Ry assumptions incleding:

= the form of remedy sdopted

o Mezrge This russrieedy well B implissrented

& which mambers will be affected by the memesy
* the eaming assumphons

o Thir withdrawal agsumption

The ather inancial and demographic ssemotions adopted 1o calkcubioe the past service cost are the same as those wed 10 miculate the ceerall scheme labikty. Adopting ditfercrs
assympticns, or making other adjusbments to reflect beravwoursd changes stemming from the judgrent. woedd be espected to charge the disclosed past senvice cost. Smilarky, alicsweng dor
winiationg in wdividual mmbers' Lilure saren or saliny Brogreaviss it sapacted 1o produce Kigher conts. The past sereics oot & patoulay seniithae 1o The Sference balween asusad
fong term general pay growth and the CPL. IF the long ferm salary growth assumptions were 0.5% pa bowes, then the past service cost dischosed here would be especied to reduce by S0% and
comerely s 0.5% pa increase would imcre e the etimabed cost by 85%
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24 Related party traveactions

Dusa 1o tha ratiing of tha Colege’s oparations and the compesiton of tha boand of gosernons baing dravwr from kel public and privete sector Drgantatons, &S evtablo That rafmacion
il foke ploce with coganisations in which 3 member of the board of governomn may have an interest, A transackions irvohing such orgarssations are conducted at anmy's lengts and in
accordance with the College™ fnancul repaations and narmal pioos emensd procedures

There were no expenses pald 10 or on behal of the Governors durieg the wear (2020-21: End}.
b Gierwin e fiieh Feasinvad dny remuiratian o wied payments fram th Cellige or @ subsiisries durng the year (TO20-21: Mons)
Satord Acadesy Trust

Salord City College was the sporocr of Sallord Acsdemy Truast. Salfoed Acadesy Trust oompries of the Albices Academy, Marborough Rosd Acackemy, Dusesgate Acadesry and dam and
Cadishead Cobege. The Acsdemies withm the Trust transferred to the Umbed Leaming Tress on 1 Febreary 2015 Folioweng fransfer, a process of dosure was enscbed for the Salford
Fiadirsry Trul, with the Trust pleced inle sobeen Bquidatios gn 10h Saptember 2071 Tha Collegn srade ce payinents on Betall ol the Trus s 2031-2F (3020-21: £13 paid sl rechirgid 1o
this Frust). There were no sdes 1o the individusl academbes within the Trust during the year (3020-21: Erd}. There was ro balinoe oweing to the Colege at 31 July 3022 |2020-21: Eni). The
folowong employees of Salfcrd Sty College were dreciors of Safard Academy Trust:

Sallard Sty Collig Sallard Acadirmy Truse

Michasl ) Shisthan Group Principal Chair {resigned 31 December 2020)
Kimberdey Cash Daeputy Frincimal Director fcommenced 10 October 20151
Fuith Oubourrs-Thampion Vit Privespal [Cenitral Senvcas) Direstor deammineid 7 Fahnsary DAy

Tsobs Lmsted

Edjobs Limied was a wholy owned subsiciany of Safford City College. 8o payments wene made on behat of Edlobs Limaed in the year {3020-21: EB]. Mo balenoes were writtern off during
the year, The comrgany was desclved on 17 Kowemiber 3020,

295 Amounty diskaryed as sgent

Learner support Pesds

nr e
£000 ED0
16-16 burvary grants Lt #51
Oitaar fundieg body grasts 75 &3
a5 918
Deafar el B0 cairdi e Ronwaird Troem prifebods ywear 338 a
[abursed to sfudents 323y 2]
adiminbiration costs 144} 136}
Oty expenditure in line with grant conaibions: 1277} 26}

Rt ased from Tres Schocl #edls (EEEH -
Balance wragent as at 31 July, meluded in creditors 545 134

Funding body grants me awilable sclely for diadents. in bhe maganty of instances, the College only schi s o paypng agent, In thess dcummdances, the prants snd refated deboryemenss are
thersfors exduded from the Statamiens of Comprnahersass Income.

206 [venty ahtes the reporting period

On 29tk November 2022, the Office for National Statistics reclassified all college corporations as public sector institetions and this prompoed the Department for Educataon to introduce somae
mizwy rubes for coleges, some of which wil take effect meredistely and others durieg the fransibonal srangemends to Autumn 2024

There are neo ocher signiicant post balance sheet everts.

51



